
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, November 27, 2018, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard, President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard

III. Consent Agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from October 16, 2018 meeting
IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard      

V. Reports 

i. Friends update Fox

ii. Foundation update Fox

iii. October 2018 financial statements Fox 

iv. Director's report Fox

VI.  Previous business
VII. New Business

i. 2018 SDIS Best Practices Program checklist for review Sheppard

VIII. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard

IX. Adjournment                  Sheppard

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie
Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language

interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, November 27, 2018, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard, President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard

III. Consent Agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from October 16, 2018 meeting
Attachments:  III.i Minutes from October 16, 2018 meeting

IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard      

V. Reports 

i. Friends update Fox

• The Friends have $20,284.31 in their checking account. 
• The Friends currently have 150 members.
• The annual Friends holiday potluck dinner will be held Tuesday, December 11, 6pm at the 

Hood River Valley Adult Center. The Library District Board is invited to this gathering. 
• Nadine Klebba and Pat Schmuck will continue to serve as Co-Presidents.
• Marilyn Murray has resigned as Vice President. 
• Soroptomist will provide a holiday wreath for their entryway display at the Hood River Library.
• There will soon be pictures of Friends volunteers added to the Friends section of the website. 

They will also update their information on the website to reflect the many opportunities to 
volunteer at the library. 

• The Book Covering Group continues to meet every Tuesday to cover new library materials.
• The Dirty Book Club cleans our dirty library materials. They have changed their meeting day to 

the 2nd and 4th Wednesday at 1pm. 
• The Friends of the Hood River County Library Pat Hazlehurst Endowment fund of the Gorge 

Community Foundation has a balance $135,788.14 with $5,200 available for grants. The 
committee approved $500 for Hood River County Reads and will meet in the next few months 
to discuss distributing the rest of the funds to the library.

• Hood River County Reads
◦ They have selected Temperance Creek – A Memoir by Pamela Royes.
◦ They have received $2,500 from the Library Foundation, $2,500 from Starseed Foundation,

$500 from the Friends of the Library Pat Hazlehurst Endowment Fund and $2,000 from the 
Hood River County Education Foundation. 

◦ The kickoff will take place Sunday, March 3, 2019. The author will present at the Hood 
River Library on Sunday, April 14. 

◦ The are working on a field trip to observe herding sheep, making sough dough bread, and 



weaving in a studio in Odell.
◦ The middle schools have said they do not want a second younger book; rather want to 

copy stand alone, age-appropriate chapters to pair with the author visit. The author has 
approved their request. 

ii. Foundation update Fox

• The Foundation has a checking account balance of $471.92, savings $1881.21, and 
Endowment balance of $104,252 at the Gorge Community Foundation which granted $4400 
this year that went towards the Library District along with the annual donation.

• The Foundation updated their by-laws and is working on a Board manual.
• Footwise will sponsor the Library Foundation/Friends of the Library in the Gorge Giving Guide. 
• Members are considering an electric donor recognition board for both the Friends of the Library

and the Library Foundation. 
• The Friends and Foundation will plan an electronic newsletter blast to raise awareness of the 

two groups and opportunities for patrons to participate. 
• Angie Green the paid bookkeeper has resigned. Ronda Starling will take over at same reduced

rate of service.
• The Foundation has formed a committee to focus on Legacy giving. The committee will meet 

and discuss a campaign to reach out to members in the community starting in summer 2019.
• The annual fundraiser the Feast of Words will be Saturday, March 9, 2pm. The focus will be 

services in Odell such as increasing pop up library services, increasing programs, and hiring a 
consultant to look at a long-term plan for Odell. 

• Heather Staten will resign from the board January 1, 2019. Heather was instrumental in the 
campaign to reopen the library and has served many years on the Foundation Board and she 
also served on the first District Library Board. New Foundation board member Amy Gray will 
take over Heather’s position as treasurer.

• The Foundation held a Donor recognition breakfast on Monday, November 19, at 8am. About 
10 people attended the breakfast. I did a presentation to the group highlighting the critical ways
the money raised by the Foundation supplements our budget and all the various projects we 
have been able to do, thanks to their donations.

• The Foundation plans to do a countywide mailing in February to solicit new members and 
donors. They will highlight the upcoming Feast of Words.

• David Niklaus of Pennsylvania donated $1,2000 to be used towards replacement costs for the 
wooden benches in the gardens with metal benches. It’s in memory of a Hood River couple 
Merle and Sophia Nicklas, who both passed away in 2017. The Foundation has created a 
plaque to honor the couple. 

• The Foundation’s Fundraising plan for this year is to raise $63,500. This will come from various
sources:
◦ End of year mailing for donations proposed net of $13,000, (up $1,000 from last year).
◦ Feast of Words: $27,000 net, up from $22,000 last year. 
◦ Endowment: $4,500, same past two years. 
◦ Membership program was in the $18-19,000 annual range. 
◦ Bequests $1,000
◦ Bricks $500

iii. October 2018 financial statements Fox 
Attachments: 

• V.iii. October 2018 financial statements

Page 2



The District has received $102,457 of the tax revenue during the month of October. The bulk of the 
remaining tax revenue will arrive this month. We are tracking well for this time of the year. 

I am still going through all the bills which were paid during my absence. I will be working over the next 
month to correct a few items that were coded to the wrong category, while I was on leave. This was 
expected to happen and it’s a simple fix to move the funds to the correct location and appears to 
mainly take place in the Grant Funds. I will work with the accountant to make the changes and aim to 
have the changes completed by the December financial statements.

iv. Director's report Fox
Administration

• We will begin to review policies in December with the Board Governance Policy. 
• Our annual audit was completed Wednesday, November 7. Our auditing firm Pauly, Rogers 

and Co. reported things looked great. They will present the annual audit by phone at the 
Tuesday, January 15, District Board meeting.

• The District has used Guardian Dental Insurance since 2012. This year, the dental costs for 
Guardian will remain the same. I’m waiting on bid from HUB international to see if any 
companies come in with a lower rate. We’ll approve the dental insurance next month.

• Arwen Ungar did an excellent job as interim director during my absence. I received many 
compliments from staff, volunteers and community members. 

• Assistant Director Arwen Ungar is working on finding and writing grants to receive funding to 
restore the deteriorating masonry on the Hood River building.  

Facilities
• Our facilities maintenance person Michael Peterson-Love painted the meeting room. We have 

received positive comments from the public.

• Thanks to funding from the Library Foundation, we now have Code of Conduct signs posted in 
the library gardens and on the grounds in four locations. 

Programs
• Beginning in October, there is now a weekly Makerspace programming for all ages including 

Robot Coding, LEGO Club and Teen Crafting.
• The library also held it's first Family Maker Night where families came together to create 

moving cardboard automatons (simple robots). 
• This year we offered programming for the first time for Native American History month. 

Children’s Librarian Jana Hannigan and Children’s Services Assistant Sarah Ryan organized a 
kick-off event with members of the Klickitat Tribe. They demonstrated salmon cutting and 
shared story telling. Participants enjoyed smoked salmon, refreshments, Native artifacts and a 
craft afterwards. There was also a movie screening of the award-winning documentary, 7th 
Generation, about the Lakota Sioux covers their history and how Native youth of today are 
succeeding in contemporary America while remaining Indian at heart.

• The kids department is doing outreach in the community at two locations, which serves a 
population who may struggle with visiting our main library branch. They have weekly storytimes
at Wyeast Apartments on the heights. They also conduct a reading buddy program at the El 
Riconcito which serves the children at the trailer park behind the taco stand. The reading 
buddy program has the older children read to the younger child and library staff help with 
building literacy skills. 

• We also have our regular storytimes in Hood River on Thursday and Parkdale on Fridays. 
We’re working on adding a weekly storytime to Cascade Locks Library. 

Page 3



• The teen librarian Rachel Timmons recently had a craft where teens made slime! Timmons 
also hosted our long running program the Literary Trivia Challenge, this month’s theme was 
Percy Jackson books. Timmons also runs the weekly Teen Council meetings which empowers 
teens to assist with the Trivia Challenges, program planning, and games. They have fun, have 
snacks, and earn volunteer hours. It’s open to all Middle and High School aged teens.  

• There is abilingual story time in Hood River every Wednesday evening through December 15. 
The numbers have been low and Bilingual Outreach Specialist Yeli Boots will cease the story 
time at the end of December and plans to pick it up again in the summer. 

• Boots finished her pop up library at the Meracado in Odell, which ran through October. We are 
still looking for a winter location for the pop up library. Boots had a successful summer reading 
program with over 30 kids signed up.

• Boots is co-sponsoring a GED program in Odell. The program runs through June 2019. 
Periodically she will take library materials to the class for students to check out.

• Boots is also doing a monthly storytime at a preschool in Odell and four kindergarten classes 
at Mid-Valley. 

• Boots attended Cultureseed’s first Latinx Youth Lider Summit in Hood River. A new Latinex 
teen circle was born from the event and they meet here at the Hood River Library. 

• The Friends of the Library has funded the Odell Bus project to operate one time per month for 
the months of September – May. We will continue to operate the bus weekly during the months
of June – August, which is funded by Oregon State Library Ready to Read Grant funds.

• In the month of October, there were many adult programs cosponsored by One Community 
Health for Gorge Happiness month. We’re also teaching classes each month on how to add e-
books and e-audio to devices. 

Personnel
• We are in the process of hiring a Public Service Clerk for 19.5 hours per week to replace a staff

member who resigned from the position. 
• Children’s Services Assistant Sarah Ryan is expecting a baby and will take parental leave 

starting in January.

Marketing
• The newsletter had a 47% open rate (4% higer than last month) and a 6% click rate (3% lower 

than last month). 

Statistics
• Cascade Locks library patron visits have doubled. We were averaging about 100 visits per 

month and now average 200 visits per month since we moved into the new space. 
• I’m working on catching up on the statistics. I plan to have a comprehensive report for fiscal 

year 2017-18 in the December board packet and by January I will start including a monthly 
statistical report in the board packet regarding library usage and program attendance statistics.

VI.  Previous business
VII. New Business

i. 2018 SDIS Best Practices Program checklist for review Sheppard

The Special Districts Insurance Services (SDIS) Best Practices Program is available to all SDIS 
Property Casualty Program participants. Its purpose is to assist districts with implementing best 
practices to mitigate risk in areas of high exposure. This year’s program offers each district up to a 
10% credit on 2019 general liability and property insurance contributions by completing requirements. 

Page 4



In the past, SDIS required the board to review the checklist prior to submitting it. Starting last year, 
they allow directors to complete the checklist, but then ask the checklist be reviewed with the 
governing board. I have completed the checklist and we have qualified for the 10% discount. Please 
see the attachment for full details.

• Affiliate Organization Membership – Credit 2% 
◦ Oregon Library Association

• Property photos – Credit 2%
◦ Completed – 2 photos of each structure needs to be uploaded to the insurance site. 

• Online Training – Credit 2%
◦ Completed - Facilities Emergencies online training (Management - Rachael Fox)

• Policy (Preventative Maintenance Policy) – Credit 2%
◦ Fox will present a policy for approval at the December board meeting. We have received 

credit, since the policy needs to be approved by January 1, 2019.
• SDAO/SDIS Training or Board Practices Assessment – Credit 2%

◦ Completed - Fox and Hackett attended the 2018 SDAO Annual Conference

VIII. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard
• Preventative maintenance policy
• Review Board Governance policy
• Dental Insurance renewal

IX. Adjournment                  Sheppard

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie
Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language

interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Page 5



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, October 16, 2018, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard, President

Minutes prepared by Assistant Director Arwen Ungar
Present:  Arwen Ungar (staff), Karen Bureker, Brian Hackett, Megan Janik, Sarah Marsden, Jean

Sheppard  

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
President Jean Sheppard called meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 

II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest No conflicts Sheppard

III. Consent Agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from September 18, 2018 meeting
Attachments:  III.i Minutes from September 18, 2018 meeting

• ii. Invoice Sage Library Consortium

This membership connects us to our 70 consortium libraries, which we share materials. This funds
technical staff who create an infrastructure, policies and technical support for our integrated library
system software Evergreen. It also funds our courier system which runs five days per week.

The invoice for $12,271exceeds my spending authority, so I’m asking for Board approval.

Bureker moved to approve the consent agenda, Marsden seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard      
Opened to the general public at 7:06, closed at 7:06
V. Reports 

i. Friends update Ungar
The Friends and foundation met to discuss how to clearly relay information about what each group 
does with the public. The groups plan to send out a marketing newsletter differentiating the two as well
as send information in the annual mailer.  Further, they discuss what areas they overlap in and what 
areas might be good for further collaboration. The Friends tentatively set their Christman potluck date 
for December 11. 

The Hood River Reads committee selected Temperance Creek by Pamela Royes for its annual book. 
Royes has agreed to the program and will visit the area from April 12-April 14. The program will kick 
off on or around March 2. 

ii. Foundation update Ungar
The Foundation will hold a donor appreciation morning on November 19 at 8 am in the library to thank 
those who have donated throughout the years. Pastries and coffee will be served. Feast of Words is 



slated for March 9 and Jen Bayer will be the chair again this year.  This year’s fundraiser will be 
dedicated to improving services in Odell.

The Foundation approved the 2018/2019 budget document after treasurer Heather Staten made some
changes for clarity from the previous meeting. The Foundation is in need of a bookkeeper.  The group 
also discussed efforts to encourage Legacy Giving from the community, which could include 
highlighting some of the individuals who have already done this.

iii. September financial statements Ungar 
Attachments: 

• VII.i. September financial statements

iv. Director's report Ungar
Administration

• We will begin to review policies in December with the Board Governance Policy. 
• There is one potential 1600 square foot space in Odell that may be available on a temporary to

permanent basis. 
Facilities

• The Snow removal contract was for two years so does not need to be renegotiated until 
November 2019.

• Michael Peterson-Love has done much of the exterior painting and cleaning around the 
windows and will paint the meeting room at the end of the month. 

Programs
• Programs in October have been a success with may attending the Gorge Happiness Month 

programs. 
• Programs in November include a Marimba group and Workshop, more makerspace programs 

and author Renee Denfeld, among others. 
Personnel
• There have been two workman’s comp claims in the past 6 months and we will work with 
SDAO to develop best practices for repetitive motion actions and have a consultant come out to look 
at our work spaces to determine better functionality 
• Part-time public service clerk Helen Alexeff has resigned her position as of October 24, she will
remain on the on-call substitute list. 

Marketing
• The newsletter had a 43% open rate (5% lower than last month) and a 9% click rate (3% 

higher than last month). 
• Facebook followers increased slightly by 8% page engagement also increased very slightly at 

2%. 

VI.  Previous business
VII. New Business

i. Medical Insurance renewal (ACTION)  Hackett,  motioned, Janik 
Seconded Ungar

Attachment: 
• VII.ii. Employee Health Care Benefits Policy

Page 2



It's time to renew our health insurance. We have used United Health Care this past year. Our plan at 
United has been eliminated and replaced with a similar plan at a lower ($750) deductible.  This plan: 
United Healthcare Choice Plus Gold 750  AV2S w/447 represents an increase of just over 3%.  ‐

Our Health insurance agent, HUB-BCI group, got quotes from other insurers, including Providence,
United Healthcare, and the Special Districts Association of Oregon. United Healthcare appears to be
our best option.  The next closest plan was a Special Districts Association of Oregon Plan that 
represented a 7% increase with considerably worse coverage, a $2,000 deductible (compared to $750
at United); $35 office visits (compared to $25 at United); and 30% coinsurance (compared to 20% at 
United).

 The deadline to add or make changes for the plan is the end of November. If we want to change 
carriers, the date would be November 15th. I recommend we enroll in United Healthcare Plus Premier 
Gold 750 but we can change plans, if the Board wishes to elect a different plan and/or carrier.

As you can see there is just over a 3% increase for next year for the Choice Plus Gold 750. Per the
Employee Health Care Benefits Policy, the District contributes $1,000 toward the cost of employees'
monthly health insurance. The amount of the monthly cap paid for each employee is based on a forty
hour work week, and it is reduced proportionally for employees who work fewer than forty hours per
week.

Fox budgeted a 10%  increase in this year’s budget.   The District will pay an additional $13.93 per 
employee for this plan. There are three staff members who enroll family or employee and children 
already met the cap and will pay out-of-pocket for the additional fees.

Our dental insurance is predicted to increase. HUB-BCI group is running cost comparison now with
other carriers and I will have it ready for the next board meeting. Dental must be renewed by January
1, 2018.

Our health insurance with United Healthcare will include medical, mental health, alternative care,
vision, and pharmacy coverage. I can send you benefit summaries, if you would like. I highly
recommend we continue to use United Healthcare as our insurance provider and select Choice Plus 
Gold 750. This is a low overall increase to the District.

Hackett moved to approve the healthcare renewal, Janik seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

VIII. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard

IX. Adjournment                  Sheppard
The Meeting was adjourned at 7:36 p.m.

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

Page 3



The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie 
Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Page 4




















